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July 25, 2013
Response to Bidder Questions and Amendment #2 

For Request for Proposals (RFP) 13-03 ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS SERVICES 
To All Potential Bidders:

Attached are the Department’s responses to Questions received for the above referenced RFP.

The Department is issuing Amendment #2 as clarification for:

· Amend Functional Requirement’s 1.1, 1.12, 1.13, 2.12, 3.7, 3.8, 3.13, 4.1 and 5.2
· Amend Performance Standards and Liquidated Damages 5.A.4 and 5.B.4.

· Amend Proposal Submission to include Insurance Requirements to Volume One format.

· Amend Proposal Evaluation to include Insurance Requirements.

· Amend Technical Exhibits:
· Exhibit 1 - A – Corrected name of Exhibit for 2012 Fedwire Payments.

· Exhibit 1 - B (Implementation Guidelines)– Deleted one of the requirements.

· Exhibit 1 - Q (Sample Reports)– removed Check/Voucher column.

· Added Exhibit 1 - S – Credit Card Percentages. 

· Amend Attachment 1 – Bidders Checklist to include Insurance Requirements.

· Power Point of the  YouTube Presentation
Replacement pages are attached after Question Responses.  All deletions are shown as shaded, strike-through text, all additions are made in red text.

All other requirements and conditions remain as indicated in the RFP.
	#
	RFP Section
	RFP Page #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Section 1.12
	33
	Warehousing – Please provide more detail in reference to the requirements. 

	For some return filings and payment applications, the Department allows Taxpayers to file well before the due date and to choose a settlement date up to and including the due date. These payments are considered warehoused until the settlement date. The Contractor will be required to receive batch files containing warehoused payments and must hold those payments until the settlement date before processing. When each Web Application- (1) payment only and (2) return with payment (via DTF Online Services), is implemented on the Contractor’s portal, Taxpayers will have the ability to warehouse payments based on program business rules (see Exhibit 1-Q). 

	2
	Section 1.15
	17
	Unclean Transactions – Please provide more detailed information on the notification requirements.
	The Department is requiring a report of ‘unclean’ addenda records. Please see Exhibit 1-O pages 224-226, and please see the definition of an ‘Unclean Transaction’ in the RFP Glossary.

	3
	Section 6.5
	58
	Daily Transaction Report - Would the DTF be open to alternate report formats provided that the required data elements are provided?
	Yes, DTF would be open to accepting an alternative report format as long as all required data elements are provided. All reports regardless of format must be able to be sent to DTF electronically. Paper reports will not be accepted.

For some reports such as Advice of Deposit, Summary Recap of Receipts, the format must be as provided in the sample Exhibits 1-O. 

	4
	General
	
	Would it be possible to more clearly identify requirements for the E-Pay application versus ACH Direct?
	DTF sought clarification from potential Bidder.  No response was provided.  This question is deemed withdrawn.  

	5
	General Question
	
	May we use an alternative format (i.e. remove table-style format) in responding to the RFP as long as we cover each section and question?
	No.  The bid proposal must be in the RFP format.

	6
	1. Introduction, C. Program Overview, B.
	20
	Can DTF please describe batched payment transactions in more detail?  What are they composed of? How do they originate?  We note that DTF indicates they will be phasing out tax programs from the batch payment process and transitioning them to the Contractors one line payment program.
	Currently, the Department accumulates payments initiated by Taxpayers through our Web applications (payment only and return with payment), and through electronic and paper return filings. These payments may be warehoused until the settlement date. The Department transmits these payments in batched files using a NACHA format to the Department’s current Contractor for processing.

The Contractor must accept a batch file of these same payments and where applicable, warehouse until the settlement date using the common file layout. (See Amended Functional Requirement 3.7).
Based on an implementation schedule that will be determined jointly by the Department and the Contractor, the Department will be transitioning from a batched processing method to a transactional method on the Contractor’s portal. 

The Contractor must retain the ability to receive a file of batched transactions for the life of the Contract.

	7
	II. Qualifying Requirement
	27
	C. Financial Stability Conditions, Response Requirement, Financial Data, a. Publicly Held Companies.

Would DTF accept a link to our financial reports given how voluminous they are?  If no, we recommend they be bound in a separate binder for ease of review.  Is this acceptable?
	For financial stability reviews, we require the last three years of audited financial statements and the most recent interim statement.  

If the entity is a publicly held company, these documents can be obtained from the bidder’s website.  Web links provided by the bidders with these documents would be sufficient.

For privately held entities, submission of the audited financial statements and most recent interim statement via CD is sufficient.

	8
	I. Cooperation with Department/State/Federal Investigations & Page 107, 8.
	71
	The Department may interview Contractor’s employees and/or agents in connection with an investigation during normal business hours.

DTF has in the past been willing to remove this sentence as it is against our Human Resource Policy.  Is DTF once again willing to remove this sentence?
	The Bidder may provide extraneous terms as indicated in Section V. B. 19.

	9
	1.A.1-1.A.4
	83-84
	Will DTF consider modifying the language in these 4 terms to note that the reason for the delay must be the sole fault of the Bank and that DTF did not play a part in causing the delay?
	The Department respectfully declines to modify the language.

	10
	Business Participation Opportunities for MWBEs
	104-105
	Will DTF consider allowing bidders to submit proposals with a Request for Partial or Full Waiver if 1) they determine they can utilize some MWBE’s but cannot reach the 20% threshold or 2) they determine that they cannot find any appropriate MWBE subcontractor/vendors to directly support the subject contract, respectively.  Our Corporate MWBE efforts are strong; however, it can be a challenge to locate appropriate MWBEs for the direct support of banking contracts given the sensitive nature of the financial services being provided.  We take both DTF’s and our reputation into consideration as we pose this question.
	Yes.

	11
	Section 1.19
	37
	What is the current percentage or flat fee for your payments?

 Can the percentage be different for each tax type depending upon the anticipated volumes?
	The Department allows credit card service providers participating in the IRS’ S Credit Card payment program to provide services to NYS taxpayers if the providers comply with DTF Specifications as set forth on our website.  A taxpayer making a payment by Credit Card may choose between the Credit Card processors. The credit card service provider charges a convenience fee to taxpayers based on the amount of the payment. These fees vary by service provider and are subject to change at their discretion.

The current Credit Card convenience fees are available on our Web page:

http://www.tax.ny.gov/pay/all/convfees.htm
No. Fees or Percentages must be the same across all tax programs.

	12
	Section 1.19
	37
	Can DTF provide the credit card volume broken out by card type?  Please also include average ticket size for each.
	Please see new Exhibit 1-S.  The information that you are requesting can be extrapolated using this new Exhibit in conjunction with the Exhibits in the RFP.

	13
	Section 1.19 on page 37 and 1-B Implementation Guidelines on page 131
	37 & 131
	Is it the intention of DTF to offer credit card payments options to taxpayers beyond the current anticipated volumes for PIT?  Can you provide a complete list of tax types that you are contemplating offering the credit card payment option?  In addition, can you please provide the following:

· Total volume of transactions (all volumes): by tax type

· Total revenue collected by tax type
	Yes, the Department expects to offer credit card as a payment option for other tax programs in the future. However, those programs have not yet been identified, therefore we cannot provide volume and revenue figures.

	14
	Section C: Program Overview
	
	Can the State clarify the complete tax payer information that is expected to be passed to the Bank?
	The Department is only sending taxpayer information for Business Taxpayers.

Please refer to Exhibit 1-R Taxpayer Identification File Layout.


	15
	Functional Requirements:  
	35
	The Contractor must have the ability to identify "Unclean" ACH Credit and Fedwire transactions with missing or invalid addenda records and attempt to validate the record using a file of all valid New York State taxpayers and processing rules provided by DTF.

Can DTF please provide in more detail how DTF will share this data with the Banking partner and how it is currently provided/handled today?
	The Department requires that the Contractor authenticate the Taxpayer using the file of Taxpayer IDs provided to the Contractor. The Taxpayer ID is located in Record 7 of the addenda record in positions 8-22. If the Contractor is unable to authenticate the Taxpayer, the transaction is considered ‘unclean’. The Contractor would apply the default Taxpayer ID to be supplied during implementation.



	16
	Functional Requirements:  1.17,
	36
	The Contractor must have the ability to apply pre-determined payment processing edits for all addenda records. The Contractor must also identify any fields found on the addenda record that they are unable to process, and generate a report for DTF staff to resolve and/or correct the addenda records. DTF addenda record payment processing edits will be provided during implementation.

Do you currently have this in place with your current provider or will this be a new enhancement?
	This is the current process.

	17
	3.1 Collateral
	80
	What is the average ledger balances in the accounts with DTF for this program?  

Would it be acceptable to provide a FHLB LOC for securing the deposits?  This is customary for the State of New York Office of the State Comptroller.
	The monthly average collected balance is expected to be 100% collateralized in accordance with Section 105 of Finance Law.

In accordance with Section 105 of Finance Law, the Federal Home Loan Letter of Credit is acceptable.



	18
	Implementation (Phase 2 –)
	138
	Are you currently providing capability to view and pay tax bill (Assessment Receivable)?  

Will this be for PIT only?  Please confirm.
	Yes, view and pay tax bill (Assessment Receivable) is a current Web Application – payment only on DTF Online Services. 

 All taxpayers with assessments can utilize this application; it is not limited to Personal Income Tax bills.

	19
	Contract Goals
	290
	For purposes of this procurement, the DTF hereby establishes an overall goal of 20% for Minority and Women-Owned Business Enterprises (“MWBE”) participation for Subcontractors and suppliers; 10% for Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (“MBE”) participation and 10% for Women-Owned Business Enterprises (“WBE”) participation (based on the current availability of qualified MBEs and WBEs).

Is the MBE and WBE based on total p x v costs of this proposal for a combined 20% of fees of which is generated by these vendors?
	The Department established its MWBE goals for this contract based on a level of commitment that we believe is attainable in the industry; and is in line with the State's priority to advance use of MWBE firms.  Be advised that if your firm is not able to attain stated goals, a request for a waiver is possible.  

	20
	Section 2.14
	42-43
	Is there a finite length of time for the payment history? Will DTF require data migration of existing payment history into the application?
	The Department requires payment history be viewable for the life of the Contract.

The Department will not be sending any existing payment history to the Contractor.

	21
	Section 4.3 (b)
	51-52
	Please describe the extent of “translation services” the telephone customer service must provide?
	The Contractor must provide accurate translation services for all taxpayers requiring services in the languages outlined in Functional Requirement 4.3.b.

	22
	
	
	Is the key structure for storing and maintain card and bank information similar to using a “token”?
	No.  See response to question 27.

	23
	Section 3.17
	48
	What defines a “cancelled payment” for reporting back to DTF? 
	A Cancelled Payment is one that was scheduled (or warehoused) and cancelled by the Taxpayer prior to the scheduled date. 

	24
	General
	
	· Please confirm that the chosen vendor will replace the multiple third-party vendors/options currently available.

· Are all payment types and eligible tax types indicated in this RFP in production now or do some of these require development and modification as part of this RFP? If so which ones will undergo development or modifications prior to production?

· Who are the current incumbents providing these services now?

· If a bidder is able to accelerate the provisioning of these services earlier than the indicated required dates, would the NY State Department of Taxation and Finance also be able to begin production sooner?

· Are there software development aspects to this project that the NY State Department of Taxation and Finance needs to complete on a schedule that ultimately set the due dates as indicated in the RFP? 


	· This RFP will replace the electronic services components of the Department’s two Contracts with JPMC.   Additionally, Credit Card Services will be provided under this contract exclusively at the implementation of Phase 2.

· Yes, all payment and tax types indicated in the RFP are currently in production. The Department will need to determine if modifications to the current Web payment only and return with payment applications prior to implementation in the Contractor’s portal are necessary.

· Please see response in first bullet above.  For the current third party credit card service providers please see the Department’s website.

·  The Department will work with the new Contractor to establish mutually agreeable production dates.

· Yes.

	25
	III. Technical Requirements
	34
	DTF will dictate the allowable warehouse periods by tax program.  The Contractor must code and apply business rules to determine if warehousing is allowed based on program and enforce accordingly. Payment page must be dynamic and should not allow taxpayers to enter an effective date for programs that do not allow warehousing (e.g. bill payment).

Please provide examples of all business rules to be supported.
	The Department will define the business rules with the assistance of the Contractor after Contract award. 

However, Exhibit 1-Q provides some examples of program specific business rules.

	26
	III. Technical Requirements 2.1
	38
	How many unique online and IVR interfaces will be required?  Please clarify how the tax programs, payer types, data capture points, etc.,  will affect the total number of instances required.
	Please see the Pre-bid YouTube Presentation at: http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a561JahlcGA&feature=youtu.be


	27
	III. Technical Requirements 2.4
	40
	The Contractor must store taxpayers saved bank account and credit card account information using a key structure provided by DTF, ensuring that DTF controls the visibility of account information to taxpayers.

Please describe the key structure to be provided. 

 If the vendor already uses encryption (compliant with a PCI Level 1 Merchant DSS) to store all sensitive consumer payment account data, will this meet DTF’s requirements?
	DTF will have a composite key consisting of internal taxpayer ID, external tax payer ID and Online Services User ID. DTF has scenarios whereby two different internal taxpayer IDs can be assigned to the same taxpayer.  When this occurs, the IDs are consolidated into one of the two. In order to accurately retrieve payment history, it is necessary for the Vendor to apply these changes at DTF’s direction through an automated process. 

It is acceptable for Vendor to encrypt/decrypt this key.

This requirement does not relate to PCI Compliance.

	28
	III. Technical Requirements 2.6
	40
	Is SAML the required technology or will an alternative SSO solution also meet DTF’s needs?
	SAML is required.

	29
	III. Technical Requirements 2.12
	43
	The Contractor must provide a web service call to DTF’s Message Center whenever a taxpayer submits a transaction on the Contractor’s site and a confirmation number is provided to the taxpayer in connection with any payment transaction including but not limited to initiating/cancelling a payment(s).

What type of web service call technology does DTF require?  
	See Amended Functional Requirement 2.12.


	30
	III. Technical Requirements 2.14
	43
	What length of time is required for the viewable Pay History?

Will the online payment channel hosted by the vendor be required to show payments from all channels (including paper, etc.)? 

 If so, how will that info be provided by DTF to the vendor?
	The Department requires payment history be viewable for the life of the Contract.

The Department requires the Contractor to display payment history for payments processed by the Contractor.

	31
	III. Technical Requirements 3.5
	45
	What is your business day close?
	The Department has no set Business Day close.  The Contractor is required to transmit to the Department all data files and reports by 7AM next Business Day. The Department requires the Contractor accept ACH debit files at a minimum up to 8PM (ET) for credit next Banking Day. 

	32
	III. Technical Requirements 3.2
	49
	The Contractor must provide to DTF raw data for all addenda record/layouts and have the ability to store raw data for a minimum of 90 days.

Who does DTF consider the System of Record?
	The Department is considered the system of record for the final determination of posting a payment to a taxpayer’s account.  

	33
	
	
	What is the current call volume, on average, per day?  If current volume is not captured, what do you anticipate as the future call volume for IVR and CSR channels?
	The Department keeps these records on an annual basis.  The Call volumes for 2012: 

· Our PrompTax customer service center received 26,358 calls of which 65% resulted in a payment being initiated.

· Promptax IVR – 18,666.
· Credit Card IVR (assessments receivable payments only)– 39,280 payments.



	34
	
	
	SAML Technology - general question:  Please provide technical specifications in regards to your SAML technology?  Any additional information you can provide about your SAML technology; version, detailed specifications, etc. would be greatly appreciated.
	DTF is currently moving to SAML 2.0 – please refer to publicly available information for detail on the standards.

	35
	
	
	ACH Debit Processing - Page 22: Is it the State’s plan, as a permanent solution, to send an ACH debit file (utilizing a banking portal) that is a separate process from the contractor provided portal for ACH Credits? 

 Please explain the desired process flow for ACH debits.
	The State’s current plan is outlined throughout the RFP.  Specific details are outlined in the Functional Requirements at:  http://www.tax.ny.gov/about/procure/current_bid_opportunities.htm
The Department’s YouTube video presentation details the process flows: http://www.youtube.com/watch?v=a561JahlcGA&feature=youtu.be.

 

	36
	Financial Data
	27
	Is it permissible to provide links to requested financial information rather than hard copies?
	See response to question 7.

	37
	1.1
	30
	What is the difference between Batched file and Transactional file transmission?
	Please see Amended Functional Requirement 1.1.

Web service interaction is deemed transactional.

Please see the response to question 6.

	38
	1.3
	31
	“The Contractor must maintain controls to ensure all ACH Debit and Credit Card payment transactions received are processed and transmitted to DTF within agreed upon time frames.”  At what point does the State envision establishing the agreed upon time frames for transaction processing and delivery?
	DTF envisions negotiating the timeframes with the Contractor after Contract award and prior to implementation, however, files must be received by DTF no later than 7 am ET the next Business Day.

	39
	1.2
	37
	All credit card and account data must be stored in accordance with all New York State and Federal laws, policy and procedure.  Is there a source of reference for these policies and procedures, or is there a guideline document that can be made available?
	The Contractor must comply with all applicable NACHA Rules, Association Rules, and Payment Card Industry Data Security Standards (PCI DSS) and meet industry standards.

Information and policy concerning New York State security standards can be found at the website of the Office of Information Technology Services, Enterprise Information Security Office at:  
http://www.dhses.ny.gov/laws-policies/

	40
	2.4
	39
	Regarding “using a key structure provided by DTF, ensuring that DTF controls the visibility of account information to taxpayers.” Please expand on the State’s definition of “controls”.
	Please refer to the response to question 27.

	41
	2.11
	41-42
	 What would be needed for “Trend Analysis Review”? What type of reports or export files would suffice?


	Per the requirements, the Contractor must be able to report to the Department any data element available. Such data may be call volumes, dropped calls, incomplete transactions, etc.

The format of the reports will be mutually agreed upon during implementation.

	42
	3.13
	47
	 “The Contractor must transmit completed and reconciled (reconciled to the day’s activity in each New York State bank account) payment transactions on a tax program Data Output File (see Exhibit. 1-J, Sample Payment File Layout).”  Please provide the State’s definition of “reconciled payment transactions”.
	Any payment that has settled and is included in the next data transmission to the Department is considered a reconciled payment.

	43
	4.3
	51-52
	 Please expand on your expectation of for providing “Translation Services" for other 5 languages.
	Please see response to question 21.

	44
	General
	
	Can the Department please post a copy of the powerpoint presentation used in the You Tube video that bidders can download?
	The document has been posted with our response to questions.  Please see Attachment A.  Please note, the slides should be considered in conjunction with the audio that accompanied the YouTube presentation.

	45
	General – Confirmations
	
	Will the State or the contractor be responsible to communicate payment confirmations to the tax payers?

If the contactor is responsible, what are the requirements?
	For web payment only, the Contractor is required to assign the DLN and provide confirmation of that transaction to the taxpayer. Please refer to Functional Requirement 2.12 and Exhibit 1-B.

For web return with payment, the Department is required to assign the DLN and provide the confirmation to the taxpayer.

	46
	General – Payment History
	
	Payment History: Is the requirement for the Contractor system:

1. To have payment history available to a single taxpayer for all tax types? Or, 

2. To have payment history available to a single taxpayer for a single tax type?

How do current systems provide payment history to taxpayers?


	Payment history should be displayed by a single taxpayer for a single tax type.
Currently, payment history is provided to some taxpayers through DTF’s Online Services 

	47
	A. Proposal Questions/Inquiries
	7
	Prospective Bidders should note that all clarifications and exceptions, including those relating to the terms and conditions of the RFP, are to be resolved prior to the submission of a bid.  Exceptions to Contract terms in Exhibit C, Preliminary Contract, must be submitted with the Bid Proposal.  Bidders entering into a contract with the State are expected to comply with all the terms and conditions contained herein.

Can the Department please clarify the intent of this requirement? Is it the Department’s expectation that a prospective bidder is required to submit all their proposed changes / exceptions to the content of the RFP (for example - proposed changes to the Insurance requirements in section F Page 90) as part of the question / answer process – or as part of the final submission as per the instructions in section 19 Proposed Extraneous Terms on Page 113.
	Any clarifications and/or exceptions to the Technical Requirement III.F. Insurance Requirements must be addressed prior to the submission of a bid proposal.  

Any clarifications and/or exceptions to the Insurance Requirements of the draft contract should be submitted as Extraneous Terms in the bid proposal.

	48
	RFP Glossary
	12
	Call Processing - A method of payment initiated through an operator assisted and/or Interactive Voice Response (IVR).

Can the Department please clarify which specific tax types will require the Contractor’s IVR for Call Processing? Can this be added to pages 244 – 249?
	The Department is requiring IVR for PrompTax ACH Debit transactions and for Credit Card Assessments Receivables payments. 

The Department respectfully declines adding it to pages 244-249.

	49
	C.  Program Overview
	21
	The Department is also requiring that the Contractor provide an administrative site that allows DTF a view to data for creating customized and standardized reports; ability to view taxpayer’s payment history; ability to move misdirected payments and the ability to cancel/modify scheduled payments.

Can the Department please provide the specific requirements or expectations around the desire for creating customized reports? 

Are all of the specific requested customized reporting included in the RFP specifications?


	The Department will be providing further Specifications on customized reports during implementation.

See the Sample Reports in Exhibit 1-O.



	50
	C. Program Overview
	21
	Ability for taxpayers to view their payment history via the Department’s Online Services application. This view will be made available to taxpayers both by being passed from the Contractor to the Department through a secure data exchange and available for taxpayer inquiry on the Contractor’s site;

Can the Department please clarify the requirement to provide both methods for taxpayers to view payment history? Can The Department agree only on one method? 

If not please elaborate why?
	Not all tax programs offer payment history through the Department’s online services.   Therefore both methods are required.  



	51
	C.Program Overview
	21
	Ability for taxpayers to cancel a scheduled payment either through the Department’s Online Services application or through a link to the Contractor’s site from the Department’s Online Services;

Can the Department please clarify the requirement to provide both methods for taxpayers to cancel a scheduled payment? Can The Department agree only on one method? 

If not please elaborate why?
	Currently, not all web applications on Online Services allow a Taxpayer to cancel a scheduled payment. Additionally, Taxpayers who initiate scheduled payments through electronic and paper return filings have no ability to cancel payments. Therefore, the Department is requiring the Contractor to provide both methods to cancel a scheduled payment.



	52
	A. Functional Requirements
	30
	The Contractor must provide a payment solution that allows for the processing of electronic payments via the following methods:
- Web (ACH Debit & Credit Card)

- Batched file transmissions – (ACH Debit)

- Transactional file transmissions – (ACH Debit)

Can the Department please provide additional detail what it means by “transactional file transmissions”? Is there a specific format and protocols required?


	Please see amended Functional Requirement 1.1.

	53
	1.9
	33
	The Contractor must have a process in place to be able to support IAT transactions.

Can the Department please clarify which tax types are required to support IAT transactions and can this information please be added to pages 244-249?


	All tax types included in this RFP will accept an IAT transaction.

The Department respectfully declines to add this information to pages 244-249.

	54
	1.13
	34
	Taxpayers must be able to cancel scheduled ACH Debit prior to settlement, but only up to a cut-off date as determined by the Department.

Can the Department please confirm that the correct reference is to cut-off time not cut-off date.
	No.  The correct reference is to cut off date.

	55
	2.2
	38
	The Contractor must apply a DTF application specific e-Signature certification language to be displayed prior to submission of all payment transactions submitted on the Contractor’s site.  

Note: Each application has its own e-Signature certification language which will be provided during implementation.  See Exhibit 1-H Sample e-Signature Certification Language.

Can the Department please clarify if the customized e-Signature requirements apply to credit card payments?
	No, the e-signature certification does not apply to Credit Card transactions.  The Contractor will only be responsible for providing e-signature certification language for payment only (no return with payment filing) and cancellation of payment transactions.

	56
	2.4
	39
	The Contractor must store taxpayers saved bank account and credit card account information using a key structure provided by DTF, ensuring that DTF controls the visibility of account information to taxpayers.

Can the Department please clarify what are the specific key structure requirements?

Would the department agree to allow the contractor to set its own key structure to ensure maximum security to tax payer information?
	See response to question 27.

Contractor cannot set its own key structure.



	57
	2.8
	40
	For those transactions that are passed to the Contractor via secured message (i.e. SAML), the Contractor must code and/or apply program specific business rules for each tax program and payment method on an individual transaction basis, based on the data received from DTF's secure message. 

Contractor must retain/maintain supporting data required to enforce business rules (i.e. reference tables).

Can the Department please clarify what are the specific business rules for each tax program and payment method and can these please be provided?
	Please see the response to question 25.

	58
	Service Calls and Messages 2.6, 2.7 & 2.8
	40
	The Contractor must be able to accept, authenticate and parse a secured message (i.e. SAML) from DTF,  process through its payment portal, redirect back to DTF with a secured message (i.e. SAML) including original parameters from DTF plus any additional transaction details, then initiate/release payment via a subsequent web service call from DTF.  

Can the Department please clarify what are the specific business rules for each tax program and payment method and can these please be provided?

Can the Department please provide more information on the required secured message strategy to be applied?

Can a contractor apply its own secured messaging implementation?
	The Department will define the business rules with the assistance of the Contractor after Contract award.  Rules vary by program but values will be passed in the SAML for all so the Contractor can apply consistent logic.  However, Exhibit 1-Q provides some examples of program specific business rules.  

See response to question 34 for secured message information.  

Contractor cannot apply its own secured messaging implementation.

	59
	2.10 & Exhibit Q
	31 & 244
	For payment transactions that DTF links directly to the Contractor's web services, the Contractor must code and apply program specific business rules (e.g. the ability to warehouse payments) for each tax program and payment method on an individual transaction basis.  See Exhibit 1-Q, Sample Program Specific Business Rules.

Can the Department please clarify what is the relevance to Check/Voucher in the 6th column of Exhibit 1-Q?


	The Check/Voucher column was inadvertently added.  Please see amended Exhibit 1-Q.

	60
	2.10 & Exhibit Q
	41 & 244
	For payment transactions that DTF links directly to the Contractor's web services, the Contractor must code and apply program specific business rules (e.g. the ability to warehouse payments) for each tax program and payment method on an individual transaction basis.  See Exhibit 1-Q, Sample Program Specific Business Rules.

Related to Q 11 above, can the Department please clarify what are the requirements to support Check/Voucher (and for which specific tax types)?
	See response to question 59.

	61
	2.9/2.11
	41
	In the instances where the taxpayer is required to file a return and make a payment, the Contractor must have the ability to process payments using a pre-assigned unique DTF DLN number and keep that assigned DLN number associated to the payment.

Can the Department please provide more information on how it assigns the range of DLNs and ensures that duplicates are not assigned?
	DLN is a composite value that identifies tax type, filing source, processing year and sequence number to uniquely identify a transaction. The combination of these values, in conjunction with a sequence object generation, ensures duplicates are not generated.

	62
	2.12
	42
	The Contractor must provide a web service call to DTF’s Message Center whenever a taxpayer submits a transaction on the Contractor’s site and a confirmation number is provided to the taxpayer in connection with any payment transaction including but not limited to initiating/cancelling a payment(s).

In addition to initiating/cancelling a payment, can the Department please confirm what other functions require a service call and for which tax types is this a requirement?

Is it acceptable for a Contractor to use their formats for this requirement?


	Please see amended Functional Requirement 2.12.  No other functions require Contractor initiated service calls.  This requirement applies to all tax types.  DTF will prescribe the format.

	63
	2.14
	42
	Contractor must be capable of performing maintenance to DTF composite key structure when key components change (e.g., taxpayer ID consolidations, OLS account information changes).

Can the Department please provide further information and examples on the requirement for “maintenance to DTF composite key structure”?

For example is it when 2 enrollments have to be merged into one?
	Please see response to question 27.  Yes, merging two enrollments into one is an example of a PrompTax scenario that results in the need to update key structure.

	64
	3.8
	46
	Third bullet- 

•
reporting payments unmatched to taxpayers and zero payment transactions to DTF.

Can the Department please clarify in what circumstances it would be sending the contractor a file that was unmatched to taxpayers?

Can the contractor assume that tax payer records on these files have already been completed validation?
	Please see amended Functional Requirement 3.8.

The file Department transmits to the Contractor contains valid Taxpayer records.

	65
	3.9
	46
	The Contractor must accept ACH Debit transactions both in batched files as well as transactionally through web services.

Can the Department please explain what is meant by the term transactionally through web services?
	Web service interaction is deemed transactional.



	66
	3.18
	46
	The Contractor shall provide DTF on Business Days a file containing the details of all bank adjustments per tax program per payment type. A file must be received each Business Day whether there is data or not. (See Exhibit 1-A for list of Tax Programs).

Please clarify if the Department wants a file each Business Day for all Promp Tax tax types.
	Yes, the Department requires a file transmission each Business Day for all tax programs listed in Exhibit 1-A.

	67
	3.21
	49
	The Contractor must accept from DTF a file transmission of valid taxpayer ID's to utilize for taxpayer authentication when making a payment via IVR and/or customer service representative.  Frequency of file updates to be determined during implementation

Is the intent that the Contractor utilize the information included in the DTF file to fully authenticate a taxpayer and so that the Contractor can complete an ACH payment according to NACHA rules/guidelines? 

How does the Contractor receive the First and Last name of the Taxpayer through for IVR payments?
	Yes. For Promptax ACH Debits initiated via IVR or customer service rep, the Contractor will authenticate the taxpayer using DTF a file of taxpayer IDs. 

The Department is only sending a file containing business taxpayers.

	68
	3.21
	49
	The Contractor must accept from DTF a file transmission of valid taxpayer ID's to utilize for taxpayer authentication when making a payment via IVR and/or customer service representative.  Frequency of file updates to be determined during implementation

It seems that taxpayers will be completing payments through the following payment channels:

1. Department passes taxpayer to Contractor’s Web site

2. Taxpayer enters Contractor Web Site directly

3. Taxpayer calls Contractor IVR

4. Taxpayer contacts Contractor Call Center

5. Department sends Contractor batch payment file

Are there additional taxpayer entry points? What common taxpayer identifier is used to create a common payment history for all taxpayer entry points #1-#5? Will the Department provide sufficient data in a file to the Contractor to sufficiently authenticate the taxpayer and create payment history for taxpayers entering from #2, #3 and #4.
	The following are entry points for Taxpayers to initiate a payment:

1. Department passes taxpayer to Contractor’s web site (utilizing the Contractor’s Hosted payment solution for web payment only and web return with payment).
2. Taxpayer enters Contractor web Site directly (Standalone Credit Card application).
3. Taxpayer calls Contractor IVR (PrompTax ACH Debit payments and Credit Card Assessments Receivable payments).
4. Taxpayer contacts Contractor call center.
5. Department sends Contractor batch payment file (batch file of ACH Debits sent to the Contractor using common file layout).
6. Taxpayer initiates an ACH Credit or Fedwire transaction.

The Contractor doesn't authenticate taxpayers in #1 as these taxpayers were authenticated by the Department's Online Services.

For #2, no taxpayer authentication is needed.

For #3, only Business Taxpayers making PrompTax ACH Debit payments need to be authenticated.

For #4 only Business Taxpayers making PrompTax ACH Debit payments need to be authenticated.

For #5 no authentication is necessary.

For #6, the Contractor attempts to authenticate the Taxpayer information found in the addenda record.

Yes, the Department will provide sufficient data to create payment history.

	69
	4.1
	50
	The Contractor must develop, with DTF's input, and maintain an Interactive Voice Response (IVR) application that allows taxpayers to make ACH Debit and Credit Card payments. This IVR must be available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year except for agreed maintenance and/or testing periods. IVR processing scripts will vary by tax program and payment type. See  Exhibit.1-I, Sample PrompTax IVR

Can the Department please clarify which tax types require a Contractor hosted IVR? 

Can the Department please clarify how will the processing and script varies by program or tax type?
	There will be six different IVRs required, each with their own script. One IVR is required for ACH Debit processing of each of the five PrompTax programs and one IVR is required for Credit Card processing for Assessments Receivable. 

Each IVR script will vary as each program will require different data to complete the transaction. These requirements will be provided in detail during implementation.



	70
	5.4
	55
	The Contractor must provide the ability for DTF staff to execute fund transfers to correct misdirected payments, ensuring that such transactions appear on the Data Output File transmitted to DTF.

Can the Department please clarify which tax types do the fund transfers apply to correct misdirected payments?

Due to the fact that only OSC moves the funds, is this a valid requirement?
	OSC has granted the Department the ability to correct taxpayer misdirected payments which only applies to PrompTax tax types.

	71
	A.Proposal Content and Organization
	115
	1. Volume One format

Can the Department please clarify where in the response we include our responses to III.
Technical Requirements, F. Insurance Requirements?
	The response to section III. F. Insurance Requirements should be included in the Technical Response.  Please see Amended pages attached to this document.

	72
	B.Submission of Proposals
	116
	The electronic copies must be encrypted and password protected.  The password must be submitted via email to bfs.contracts@tax.ny.gov.

Can the Department please provide more guidance on this requirement? Will submitting password protected WINZIP filed meet your requirement?
	Password protected WINZIP files will meet this requirement.

	73
	"Ability for taxpayers to view their payment history via the Department’s Online Services application."
	21
	What is the expected length of payment history to be made available for viewing by taxpayer
	Please see the response to question 20.

	74
	"Ability for taxpayers to view their payment history via the Department’s Online Services application."
	21
	Is the website required to provide payment history for other payment methods including wires, and ACH debit payments?
	The Contractor is required to retain payment history for all tax programs covered in this RFP to make available to the Department.



	75
	1.4 Agreed upon time frames


	31
	Do you use real time posting or messaging?

Essentially it is a XML or URL encoded message to your servers letting you know a payment has been made immediately when it is confirmed. It expects a response back as you see below and this allows you to post in real time if you want to before receiving the remittance file. 

The real-time payment confirmation feature allows Billers to receive payment information in real-time each time a payment is initiated or modified from E-Payment Service. This feature allows the Biller to update their systems in real-time. 

The real time payment confirmation message can be sent in two formats: URL encoded and XML. 

The real time payment confirmation message is sent over the Internet via http or https as defined during set-up. If the biller opts to use https, an X.509 certificate is required as described in section 3.4. In order to receive the message: 

E-Payment Service expects a response in a single line, in standard http protocol response format. The valid responses from the Biller and a description of how they are processed by E-Payment Service are provided below: 
 “EPAY_OK”: the Biller has received and processed the message successfully 
 “Failed_Auth”: the Biller has received the message but could not authenticate the Client ID or Client Password. The send attempt is stopped and an email is sent to the Biller. 
 No response: If no response or an invalid response is received from the Biller, E-Payment Service will initiate up to three additional attempts at 20-minute intervals.
	Currently DTF does not use real time posting or messaging.

	76
	1.9  The Contractor must have a process in place to be able to support IAT transactions.
	33
	Is the website required to accept IAT transactions?


	Yes.

	77
	1.13/1.14 DTF web application (via secure exchange and/or web service call from DTF to Contractor)
	34
	Is webservice call fo cancel scheduled ACH debit required to administrative site if the same call can be made by DTF directly to the web application?


	Please see amended Functional Requirement 1.13.

	78
	Transaction/volume count
	123-130
	Breakdown payment volume/# transactions by web, CSR and IVR.


	All ACH Debit transactions on Exhibit 1-A (page 123), were initiated through Web applications (with the exception of PIT and Corp Tax).  For Corp Tax, the total ACH Debit transactions equal 478,861, of which 304,590 were initiated through electronic or paper return.  The remaining 174,271 were initiated through web.  For PIT, the total ACH Debit transactions equal 809,405, of which, 670,969 were initiated through electronic return.  The remaining 138,436 were initiated through web.  On Exhibit 1-A(page 124), we list all transactions for Promptax, of which 18,666 ACH Debit payments were initiated using the IVR.

Our PrompTax Call Center Reps answered 26,358 calls, of which approximately 65% resulted in the initiation of an ACH Debit.

Approximately, 39,280 Credit Card payments were initiated for Assessments Receivable via IVR.

The Department does not have any other volume breakdown available.



	79
	1.6  Support credit card acceptance


	32
	Explain in detail how credit cards are currently accepted; online, over the counter, etc.


	Currently, Taxpayers may utilize one of three providers. Payments can be initiated online at the Credit Card provider’s website or by calling the Credit Card provider’s customer service. Taxpayers may use a Credit Card to pay a bill; a Personal Income Tax return balance; a Personal Income Tax Estimated tax and a Personal Income Tax Extension balance. There is no over the counter acceptance of Credit Card payments allowed.

For further information on the current Credit Card information please see our Web page: 

http://www.tax.ny.gov/pay/all/pay_by_credit_card.htm

	80
	1.6 Support credit card acceptance
	32
	Provide 2 recent merchant statements
	The Department respectfully declines to provide merchant statements.

	81
	1.19 Credit card convenience fee transactions


	37
	Do you require point of sale equipment which has the capability to process separate convenience fee vs tax liability transactions?


	The Department is not requiring any specific equipment.  Per the requirement, the Contractor must have the ability to process the convenience fee as a separate transaction from the tax liability payment transaction. 

	82
	I.A
	19
	Please define requirements for instances where the Contractor will be required to verify payment information prior to the taxpayer completing the return filing.
	The Contractor must verify that the business rules (to be jointly developed after Contract award) received in the secure message to the Contractor’s Portal have been correctly applied to the taxpayer’s entries.

Please see Exhibit 1-Q - Sample Program Specific Business Rules.

	83
	
	
	Intentionally Omitted
	Question withdrawn.

	84
	I.C Credit Card Payments made through stand alone web application or IVR
	20
	Please confirm if there will be a combined file for both IVR and web application.
	All payment methods (ACH Debit, ACH Credit, Credit Card and Fedwire) should be returned in the same file per tax program.  Credit Card payments should not be sent until they have settled.

	85
	I.C Credit Card Payments made through stand alone web application or IVR
	21
	a) Please confirm DTF's requirement for how much payment history is to be available for taxpayers to view.

b) Please confirm the frequency of cancelled payments today.

c) Please confirm what is the current deadline prior to payment to cancel a transaction.
	a) Taxpayers must be able to view complete payment history for all transactions performed under this Contract for the life of this Contract. 

b) The Department does not have that information.

c) The current deadline varies by tax program. Some payments cannot be cancelled as they are processed immediately. Some payments can be cancelled no later than 5 Business Days prior to the Payment Date.

	86
	I.C. paragraph 2
	21
	Can you clarify what is meant by "move misdirected payments"? Are these payments that went to the wrong agency? Are these scheduled payments that have not yet settled?
	These are PrompTax payments that were misdirected by the Taxpayer to the wrong PrompTax bank account.

	87
	I.C. paragraph 1
	21
	Taxpayers would be able to utilize the contractor's services both through a secure exchange between the DTF website and the contractor site, as well as standalone access to the contractor's site. Can you describe why certain taxpayers would not have access to the DTF summary screens, thus necessitating standalone access to the contractor site? Is it for taxpayer's who are performing one-time payments and have not established an ID/PW?
	Currently, not every tax program area has an Account Summary (payment history) view on the Department’s Online Services.  Thus, they must first come through Online Services and, if no payment history view is available there, then they will be passed to Contractor’s site to view payment history.

	88
	I.C.
	21
	Please provide examples(s) of a "customized report".
	The Department expects that reports that we require will not be a part of the Contractor’s standard reporting package, therefore the requirements for a “customized report” will be provided at the time of implementation.

	89
	I.D.
	22
	Please advise the average number of associated addenda record characters per ACH credit payment and FedWire payment respectively.
	The Department has provided the ACH Credit Addenda and Fedwire layouts (Exhibit 1-K).  The Department does not have the data for average number of characters within each of the addenda records we receive.  

	90
	I.D. ACH Debit Processing Services
	22
	Please confirm how often the acknowledgement and reject files are sent to DTF.
	The files must be sent to DTF daily.

	91
	I.D. ACH Credit and Fedwire Processing Services
	22
	a) Please confirm the frequency for file transmission.

b) Does this change for peak periods? 

c) Please confirm if there are intraday transmissions.
	a) The file must be sent daily. Please see amended Functional Requirement 3.13.

b) No.

c) No there are no intraday transmissions.

	92
	I.D.
	23
	Can you confirm whether 100% of all 140,000 card transactions will be convenience fee based?
	The Contractor may charge the credit cardholder a percentage based convenience fee but are encouraged to minimize those fees. If a convenience fee is charged, the percentage fees must be the same across all tax programs. These fees will be evaluated as part of the Financial Proposal.

	93
	II.C.a.i.
	27
	In our reply to request for copies of audited statements on page 27, can we include links to our publicly published reports?
	See response to question 7.

	94
	III.A.1.1/III.A.3.8
	30
	ACH Debit  "zero payment" transactions. Can you clarify what this represents? Are these pre-notes?
	No, they are not pre-notes. 

For example, to meet the filing requirement for PrompTax Sales Tax, Taxpayers must initiate a “zero payment” ACH Debit. This transaction would not be sent out by the Contractor to NACHA, but the data would be transmitted to the Department.

	95
	III.A.1.7
	32
	Please define an incomplete transaction. For example is an incomplete transaction if the transaction fails within our system or before we could process the transaction?
	An incomplete transaction is a transaction that was not completed through submission and assignment of confirmation number.

	96
	III.A.1.9
	33
	Can you provide your current IAT volume?
	The Department does not have that information.

	97
	III.A.1.9
	33
	Will NYS be responsible for identifying IAT transactions via use of SEC code "IAT"?
	No, the Contractor will be responsible to identify IAT transactions.

	98
	III.A.1.12
	33
	Can you confirm whether the warehousing of payments for a minimum of 1 year represents payment history (e.g. payments settled from July 2012-June 2013), or payments that have been scheduled a maximum of year in advance of settlement (e.g. payments to be processed between July 2013-June 2014)?
	Warehousing payments refers to payments that have been scheduled in advance. This information must also be a part of the payment history.

Please see amended Functional Requirement 1.12.

	99
	III.A.1.11
	33
	Please provide both examples of identical info duplications plus current successful controls and challenges.
	As an example, within a session: a Taxpayer attempts to schedule four Personal Income Tax Estimated Payments.  However, if all scheduled dates and all other data fields were identical, this represents duplicate payments. If however, the Taxpayer had selected four different Settlement Dates within the same session, where all other data fields remained the same, these would not be considered duplicate payments.

An example of a control/challenge would be a display of an error message upon attempted submission of the second identical payment transaction. The Taxpayer would have to confirm the submission of a second payment transaction.

	100
	III.A.1.11
	33
	How should duplicate transactions be distinguished from multiple intended payments.
	Please see response to question 99.

	101
	III.A.1.13
	34
	Cancelling of ACH Debits- Assumption is that this is for payments initiated exclusively through the contractor's web/IVR/Help Desk/admin site, or would it include ACH debits sent by DTF via batch?
	This requirement applies to all scheduled payments received by the Contractor. 

Please see amended Functional Requirement 1.13.

	102
	III.A.1.13
	34
	What is the Departments cutoff date for cancelling scheduled ACH payments?
	The current deadline varies by tax program. Some payments cannot be cancelled as they are processed immediately. Some payments can be cancelled no later than 5 Business Days prior to the Payment Date.

	103
	III.A.1.14
	34
	CIE- Typically this SEC format is for payments from consumer/small business home banking websites. Is this what these items represent?
	Yes.

	104
	III.A.1.14
	35
	Do you require Fedwire ERI extended addenda support?
	No.

	105
	III.A.1.15
	35
	In what EDI segment and element would the taxpayer ID be located?
	Please refer to Exhibit 1-K for the ACH Credit layouts. Record 7, Field positions 8-22 contain the Taxpayer Identification.

	106
	III.A.1.15
	35
	Based on the solution used today, please provide both the advantages / challenges and what you would want to change.
	We respectfully decline to answer the question.

	107
	III.A.1.17
	36
	Can you please provide examples of what a pre-determined payment processing edit would be?
	A pre-determined payment processing edit includes the ability to parse the addenda record based on DTF specifications. Examples:

· Defaulting the date to current period end date if date field is invalid.
· Utilizing the DTF provided file of taxpayers to authenticate the Taxpayer ID located in the addenda record field position 8-22.

	108
	III.A.2.3
	39
	Will DTF accept a revised maintenance window schedule, assuming it results in less downtime on a weekly basis?
	The DTF Maintenance window times cannot be changed. However a Contractor may propose its own Maintenance schedule as long as the downtime is within the DTF Maintenance window time frame.

	109
	III.A.2.4
	39
	Please provide an example and detail of the key structure DTF requires.
	Please see the response to question 27.

	110
	III.A.2.9
	41
	Please define and elaborate how the pre-assigned unique DTF DLN number is created and passed to the contractor. Will DTF pass the pre-assigned DLN with the transaction to the contractor for processing or will the contractor be required to generate and assign a DLN based on a predetermined schema?
	Please see the responses to question 45 and question 61.  For batched files, DTF will assign the DLN. For payments with return, the DLN will be passed from DTF to the Contractor via a secure message. For batch files, it will be included in the record layout provided to the Contractor.

	111
	III.A.2.9
	41
	Will the DLN be a required field in standard reporting or ad hoc reporting?
	Yes.

	112
	III.A.3.2
	43
	For the data file(s) DTF will provide to the contractor, will DTF send the file to the contractor or require the vendor to pick up the file(s) from secure transmission server?
	DTF will send the file to the Contractor.

	113
	III.A.3.6
	45
	Please confirm what are current cut-offs times for each agency and proposed times by the agency that DTF would like to have for new set-up.
	All files must be received no later than 7:00 AM ET next Business Day. 

Please see the amended Functional Requirement 3.13.

	114
	III.A.3.11
	46
	What is considered a duplicate file?
	All files require header records which contain record counts, deposit date, and total amounts. File is considered duplicate when all values match a file previously received.

	115
	III.A.3.22
	50
	Can you clarify the intent of the contractor sending the R/T file to DTF? Note that this file is available to the public for download at the Federal Reserve's website.
	DTF requires the winning bidder to supply this information.

	116
	III.A.4.2
	50
	Can you provide volumes for both call type 1 and call type 2 as well as the average duration for each call type? Ideally the volume would be for the last 3 years, broken out by month, with averages per day (M, T, W, Th, F) and peak hours identified.
	The Department does not have these records.

	117
	III.A.4.1
	50
	Will DTF require DTMF support for IVR?
	At a minimum, the Department is requiring the Contractor’s IVR to support Dual-tone multi-frequency signaling (DTMF). Please see amended Functional Requirement 4.1.

	118
	III.A.4.2
	51
	For the call processing script will DTF require support in English and Spanish?
	Yes.

	119
	III.A.4.5
	52
	Will DTF require TTY/TTD (support for sight and hearing impaired customers)?
	Yes, in accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act.

	120
	III.A.5.2
	54
	Can you elaborate on the sub accounts requirement? Are these different accounts for reach tax type within an agency? Or is it a single account for each agency? And by sub-account do you mean a virtual account or a true bank account?
	See amended Functional Requirement 5.2.

The Department does not co-mingle funds across tax applications.  Therefore where a sub-account exists, it will be tied to a primary NYS Bank Account.

Based on the new requirement, the Department is open to alternate solutions.

	121
	III.A.5.2
	55
	Please clarify the requirement that Credit Card transactions are not to be sent until they have settled.
	The data that accompanies a Credit Card transaction can only be sent to the Department once settlement to the NYS bank account(s) occurs.

	122
	III.A.5.5
	55
	How should the contractor notify DTF in regards to recalls or debits? How soon should DTF be contacted?
	Contractor must notify DTF immediately, but in no event later than 8:00 AM the next Business Day, via email, of any and all recalls or debits from DTF bank accounts.

	123
	III.A.5.6
	56
	What are the conditions that define an erroneous ACH debit?
	The condition could arise if research reveals that an ACH Debit transaction may not have been properly authorized. As an example, when reviewing their Bank Statement, an account holder sees a transaction that they believe was not authorized by them. After sending an inquiry through their bank, it is determined that the transaction was erroneous, DTF will instruct the Contractor to allow a reject of that transaction to be processed to DTF.

	124
	III.A.6.1
	59
	Please provide 2012 monthly transaction volume estimates for ACH debit including the number of ACH debits returned as NSF and then represented, and then the number of representments which were returned a second time.
	The Department cannot supply monthly transaction volumes. However, for Calendar Year 2012, the number of ACH Debit requests initiated from Department Web Applications payment only and return with payment as well as requested on electronic or paper returns (See Exhibit 1-A, page 123) resulted in 28,334 R01 Insufficient Funds  rejects coming to the Department.

The Department does not have the figures for the PrompTax program (please see Exhibit 1-A, page 124)

	125
	III.A.6.13
	60
	Does DTF require separate data files by New York State Account across all payment types? Please confirm the number of unique data file transmissions, including transaction details, acknowledgements and returns that DTF require daily.
	The requirement for separate data transmissions to DTF is found in amended Functional Requirement 3.13. 

The Department is requiring one combined file containing all payment data from various payment methods per NYS bank account.

DTF requires acknowledgement files for each ACH Debit batch file sent to the Contractor.

The Department requires a daily ACH Debit reject file for each tax program each Business Day even if it contains zero items, by each NYS bank account.

	126
	III.A.7.7
	62
	Please confirm if this is SSO from DTF application(s) to contractor's administrative site or SSO within contractor's administrative site.
	It is SSO from DTF application(s) to Contractor's administrative site.

	127
	III.A.8.2
	63
	Please confirm if mirroring is of system functionality or system functionality and production capacity.
	The Contractor must be prepared for capacity/stress testing prior to implementation. Contractor must also maintain an ongoing test environment for functional Enhancements.

	128
	III.E.
	82
	Would DTF be open to agreeing to a reasonable "cure period" before penalties are assessed?
	The Department has the ability to allow for a Cure Period when it issues a Notice of Defect (see p. 280 of the RFP).

	129
	III.E.1.A.1
	83
	Please confirm that the charge is for each day that one or more pieces of hardware are not operational beyond a to be agreed upon implementation timeline and not that the charge is assessed per component per day.
	The Liquidated Damages are assessed per component per day.

	130
	III.E.1.A.2
	83
	Please confirm that the charge is for each day that code is not operational in production beyond a to be agreed upon implementation timeline and not that the charge is assessed per component per day.
	Confirmed, the Liquidated Damages are assessed on a per day basis.

	131
	III.E.1.A.3
	83
	Please confirm that the charge is for each day that program is not certified beyond a to be a agreed upon implementation timeline and not that the charge is assessed per component per day.
	Confirmed, the Liquidated Damages are assessed on a per day basis.

	132
	III.E.1.A.4
	84
	Please confirm that the charge is for each day that that the system change is delayed getting into production based upon a to be agreed upon implementation timeline and not for component parts of the system modifications (eg testing is delayed a day but production date is met).
	Confirmed, the Liquidated Damages are assessed on a per day basis.

	133
	III.E.1.A.5
	84
	The standard here is "upon request". Please confirm that the fee will be assessed after parties agree to a delivery date for each required document associated with the system / program.
	Confirmed, a reasonable delivery date for documentation will be agreed upon.

	134
	III.E.2.A.1
	84
	Please confirm that the liquidated damages assessed for "each violation" are per event, not per user impacted.
	Confirmed, the Liquidated Damages are assessed on a per event basis.

	135
	III.E.4.A
	86
	Please consider that standard does not reflect the fact that issue can be with sending bank.
	The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	136
	III.E.4.A
	86
	Please consider that standard should reflect the fact that sending bank may make an error.
	The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	137
	III.E.4.A
	86
	Please consider that Taxpayer may input incorrect information in how standard is assessed.
	The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	138
	III.E.4.A.1
	86
	As ACH debit is a batch process and files can fail vs a single transaction, can this penalty include a maximum per file? 

Additionally please consider that the standard should allow for the fact that an individual transaction can fail due to taxpayer error.  
	No, the standard is per transaction, whether it is received in a batched file, or as an individual transaction.

 The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	139
	III.E.4.A.1
	86
	Can you clarify the $10/day for each ACH Debit? Is this  $10 for the full ACH debit file (which may contain multiple transactions within it), or is it $10 for every taxpayer transaction within the file?
	See response to question 138.



	140
	III.E.4.A.2
	86
	Can you clarify the $10/day for each ACH Credit? Is this  $10 for the full ACH credit file (which may contain multiple transactions within it), or is it $10 for every taxpayer transaction within the file?
	It is $10 for every Taxpayer transaction (i.e., every addenda record that should have been assigned a DLN with an ACH Credit).

	141
	III.E.4.B
	87
	Can you clarify the $100 for each payment transaction? Is this  $100 for the full deposit (which may contain multiple transactions within it), or is it $100 for every taxpayer transaction?
	It is a flat fee of $100 per transaction (i.e., every Taxpayer transaction that should have been assigned a DLN) and/or each transaction within a deposit failure.

DTF will be reimbursed for expenses and loss of revenue for failure to meet the standard.  Taxpayer will be reimbursed for any bank related expense (e.g., stop payment fees, return items fees, etc.) for failure to meet the standard.

	142
	III.E.4.B
	87
	When looking at this standard along with standards in 4A and 5B it appears there is a potential for two standards to be applied to a single violation. Please describe a scenario where this standard would be applied and not covered by another standard elsewhere in this section.
	Generally, 4.B concerns accuracy and completeness of processing and deposits, 4 A. concerns timeliness of processing and deposits, and 5B concerns accuracy and completeness of payment support services.  While the Department would be focusing on the general concerns, the possibility does exist for multiple damages to be assessable depending on the circumstances.

	143
	III.E.5.A.2
	87
	What does "must be handled" mean? For example, if a taxpayer receives a busy signal, or a taxpayer decides to abandon a call before it is picked up, does that equate to a $500 penalty? What would be examples of calls that are not handled?
	“Must be handled” refers to acknowledgement of all calls by the Contractor’s IVR service. The Taxpayer must never receive a busy signal; the IVR services must acknowledge the call and provide some message to the Taxpayer when Customer Service Representatives are unavailable to take calls or when IVR is unavailable. 

Examples of calls that are not handled are:  busy signals, taxpayer receives no response within the first thirty seconds, etc.



	144
	III.E.5.A.4
	88
	Please explain how an outage of the admin site might result in a "loss" or incremental expense. We appreciate that an outage is a fail and would come with a charge but don’t yet understand the reference to loss or expense.
	Please see Amended Performance Standard and Liquidated Damages requirement.

	145
	III.E.5.A.5
	88
	What would be the definition of a transaction that "fails to complete"? Is it a transaction that has been initiated but does not settle? Is it a transaction where a user's session is terminated before the submit button is selected?
	As an example, a transaction that fails to complete would be where the Taxpayer’s session is terminated by the Contractor, outside of the agreed upon Maintenance window, before the Taxpayer has the opportunity to submit.

This is not a scenario where the Taxpayer terminates the session before submission.



	146
	III.E.5.B.1
	88
	This section does not allow for incorrect information being provided by the taxpayer. Can the Standard specifically refer to occurrences that are contractor error?
	The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	147
	III.E.5.B.2
	88
	This section does not allow for incorrect information being provided by the taxpayer. Can the Standard specifically refer to occurrences that are contractor error?
	The standard will remain as set forth.  The Contract allows DTF discretion in determining when to impose Liquidated Damages and opportunity for Contractor to dispute.  See Article XVI. Remedies.

	148
	III.E.5.B.3
	89
	Can you provide examples of how an interaction between the contractor's Customer Service and DTF could cause a payment to be incomplete/inaccurate?
	For example, where the Contractor’s Customer Service provides incomplete/inaccurate information to the Department.

	149
	III.E.5.B.4
	89
	Please explain how an issue with accuracy or completeness relative to the admin site might result in a "loss" or incremental expense. We appreciate that an issue like this is a violation with a penalty but do not understand the opportunity for loss
	See Amended Performance Standards and Liquidated Damages Requirement III.E.5.B.4.

	150
	VI.B
	116
	In addition to the requirements listed under “Submission of Proposals” on pages 116-117, are there any formatting requirements for our response? Can printed responses be double sided?
	Responses should be with the corresponding requirements and may be printed double sided.

	151
	Exhibit 1-A:

2012 ACH DEBIT PAYMENTS - Transaction Counts
	123
	Can the ACH Debit Volumes (the 6.5MM/year) be broken out so that we have volumes for Web, IVR, CSR-assisted transactions?
	See response to question 78.



	152
	Exhibit 1-A:

2012 ACH Credit Payments - Transaction Dollar Amounts
	127
	Please provide Monthly peak ACH volumes and values.
	Exhibit 1-A page 126 is the transaction counts for ACH Credit Payments and page 127 is the transaction dollar amounts for those ACH Credit payments, each broken down by month for 2012.  Peaks are reflected in the Exhibit.

	153
	Exhibit 1-A:

2012 ACH Credit Payments - Transaction Dollar Amounts
	129
	Are these amounts for Fedwire Payments?
	The Exhibit 1-A was inadvertently mislabeled.  Please see Amended Exhibit 1-A.

	154
	Exhibit 1-A:

2012 Credit Card Payments
	130
	Please provide the breakdown of 2012 monthly transaction counts and dollar amounts by card payment type (credit card vs. debit card), card network (visa,mc,amex,disc), and transaction counts that were web vs. IVR.
	 All information that we are able to provide is contained in Exhibit 1-A (page 130) and new Exhibit 1-S.

	155
	Exhibit 1-A:

2012 Credit Card Payments
	130
	Please provide volumes by A/R type.
	All information that we are able to provide is contained in Exhibit 1-A (page 130) and new Exhibit 1-S.

	156
	Exhibit 1-B:

Implementation Guidelines
	135
	For American Express transactions, please advise how data files are heldover for transmission until after funds settlement. Are data files and funds being delivered to DTF directly by American Express?
	No.  American Express is not sending data files and funds directly to DTF.  The Contractor is required to send the data file to DTF upon completion of settlement to the NYS bank account.

	157
	Attachment 16:

Table 1 - Direct Fees
	368
	There is a line item for credit card operations fees, and a separate line item for Cardholder convenience fees. Is the credit card operations fees line item applicable if the intent is for convenience fees to cover all card costs?
	The Bidder may enter zero on either or both lines.

	158
	Attachment 16:

Table 1 - Direct Fees
	368
	If bidders identify optional value-added services not specifically requested in the RFP, can related fees be added as a separate line item to enable a one-to-one comparison of fees while not limiting capabilities available to NY State?
	No.  The Department does not wish to consider optional value-added services at this time.


III. Technical Requirements
A. Functional Requirements

This section contains the specific service and response requirements.  The Functional requirements are critical to successful project implementation.  Responses to these critical requirements are mandatory.  

Each Bidder’s response will be evaluated to determine if it meets these functional requirements.  Therefore, Bidders must provide the Department with all of the information requested to establish that they meet the minimums identified in the functional requirements.  Failure to provide sufficient detail to the functional requirement topics of this section will result in the Bidder being determined non-responsive and removed from further consideration.  Bidder responses that meet those minimums will gain evaluation points in the scoring process to the extent the response exceeds the requirement.  

	#
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	Section 1 - General

	1.1
	The Contractor must provide a payment solution that allows for the processing of electronic payments via the following methods:
- Web (ACH Debit & Credit Card)

- Batched file transmissions – (ACH Debit)

- Transactional file transmissions – (ACH Debit)

-ACH Credit   
- Fedwire payments
Note: The Contractor must also allow for ACH Debit zero payment transactions.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement by presenting a conceptual design and narrative. Description must include any timing limitations.

	1.2
	The Contractor must be willing to develop, extend or expand payment methods to accommodate other DTF programs not currently identified.  (e.g. Legislative changes, fields on applications and screens may require change in an acceptable amount of time determined by
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how your architecture, systems and program development staff will work to meet this requirement.  


	#
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	1.9
	The Contractor must have a process in place to be able to support IAT transactions.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe your process, timing, NOC’s  and any other limitations. 

	1.10
	As part of the program development effort, the Contractor must provide to the Department the most recent ACH Debit rejection reason codes, NOC codes and update as necessary.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	1.11
	The Contractor must maintain quality controls to minimize the occurrence of unintended duplicate payment transactions being submitted by taxpayers, while allowing for taxpayers to submit multiple intended payments. Duplicate transactions occur when a taxpayer provides identical information for all required payment fields.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement. Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	1.12
	The Contractor must have the ability to securely warehouse electronic payments (a minimum of one year), where payments are scheduled in advance and executed automatically on the date scheduled.

DTF will dictate the allowable warehouse periods by tax program.  The Contractor must code and apply business rules to determine if warehousing is allowed based on program and enforce accordingly. Payment page must be dynamic and should not allow taxpayers to enter an effective date for programs that do not allow warehousing (e.g. bill payment).
The Contractor must have the ability to securely warehouse electronic payment transaction requests, where payments are scheduled in advance and the payment transaction executed automatically on the date scheduled.  Taxpayers must be able to schedule their payments in advance to execute anywhere from one day up to one year after the transaction is submitted. Payment transaction warehousing capabilities for longer than one year are desirable and should be described if available. 

Allowable warehouse periods will vary by tax program, and DTF will prescribe the periods.  The Contractor must code and apply business rules to enforce submission by taxpayers of allowable transaction dates (per tax type).  Payment page must be dynamic and not allow taxpayers to enter a scheduled transaction date for programs for which warehousing of payments is not allowed (e.g., bill payment). 

Note: Warehoused payments can and will be submitted to the Contractor by the following methods:

• Batched file based exchange

• Payments initiated and/or submitted on Contractor’s payment portal

• Payments submitted by DTF staff through Contractor Hosted Administrative Site.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet or exceed this requirement.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	submitted to the Contractor by the following methods:

• Batched file based exchange

• Payments initiated and or submitted on Contractor’s payment portal

• Payments submitted by DTF staff through Contractor Hosted Administrative Site.
	

	1.13
	Taxpayers must be able to cancel scheduled ACH Debit prior to settlement, but only up to a cut-off date as determined by the Department.

The taxpayer must be able to cancel as determined by DTF using the following methods:

-Contractor web application (via secure exchange from DTF to Contractor)

-DTF web application (via secure exchange and/or web service call from DTF to Contractor)

-Contractor Customer Service Representative

-Web service call from DTF to Contractor Hosted Administrative Site.
In addition, the Department must have the ability to cancel a scheduled payment via Contractor Hosted Administrative Site.  (See requirement 7.5)
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement and the timeframe allowed to cancel a payment before settlement.

	1.14
	At a minimum, the Contractor must have the ability to process ACH Credit and Fedwire payments with the five following addenda record/layout formats:

1) CIE - Customer Initiated Entry
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet or exceed this requirement.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	successful data capture of all required fields within the online application. Incomplete transactions must be retained, however they must not appear on any outputs (e.g., screens, reports or data files) provided to DTF. 

The assigned DLN numbers for cancelled payments must be stored and available for inquiry for the duration of the contract.

Note:  Incomplete transactions are not to be assigned a transaction number. However, records of such attempts are to be maintained for trend analysis review.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement. 

	2.12
	 The Contractor must call provide a web service call to hosted by DTF’s Message Center whenever a taxpayer submits a transaction on the Contractor’s site and a confirmation number is provided to the taxpayer in connection with any payment transaction including but not limited to initiating/cancelling a payment(s).  The Department uses Simple Object Access Protocol (SOAP).
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.13
	The Contractor must provide taxpayers a complete view of payment transaction history on its site, based on the taxpayer’s delegation access that is passed in the SAML to the Contractor during the session transfer. 
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	2.14
	The Contractor must provide payment history for all payment types through a web service call that supports multiple key retrievals (e.g., taxpayer ID number, tax type, DLN) for taxpayer inquiry. The web service call will integrate payment history information into the Department's Account Summary.  Data required for each 
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	3.5
	The Contractor must be able to send Reports to DTF via a secure file transfer protocol (SFTP)by 7 am next business day.

Note: The specific reports to be sent via SFTP will be determined by DTF during implementation.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	3.6
	The Contractor must propose a transmission schedule which is in coordination with standard industry cut off times and is consistent with DTF standards for accepting data intake and reconciliation process. Contractor must support the following DTF needs:

• timing of direct data transmission/data delivery

• back up transmission strategy


	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	File Transmissions

	3.7
	The Contractor must have the ability to accept ACH Debit payment file transmissions 24 hours per day, 7 days per week, and 365 days per year. The Contractor must be able to accept a common payment file format for the file transmissions.   See Exhibit 1-J Sample Payment File Layout.

ACH Debit Payment and reject Files must be accepted at a minimum up to 8:00 PM (ET) for credit next Banking Day.  Any files transmitted after that time must be credited no later than the next/second
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet or exceed this requirement.  Please provide any timing limitations. The Bidder should provide any timing limitations or enhancements that can be made.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	banking day.
	

	3.8
	The Contractor must have the ability to accept ACH Debit transaction authorizations received through the various payment filing methods. The Contractor must process each ACH Debit transaction, and ensure all transactions are processed by:

· processing “On-us” transactions in-house;

· originating all other ACH Debit transactions to the ACH network; and,

· reporting payments unmatched to taxpayers and zero payment transactions to DTF.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	3.9
	The Contractor must accept ACH Debit transactions both in batched files as well as transactionally through web services. 

DTF will make a determination of file types per program, as needed to accommodate processing peaks.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	3.10
	The Contractor must be able to accept and process multiple ACH Debit payment files sent for the same tax program during the same day.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	3.11
	The Contractor must have/maintain internal quality controls to identify duplicate ACH Debit payment files and immediately suspend processing of the duplicate file. DTF must be contacted in all cases for further instruction. Contact
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	instructions (list and method) to be provided by DTF during implementation.
	

	3.12
	On Business Days, the Contractor must have the ability to provide to DTF a verifying ACH Debit acknowledgement file, within one hour of receiving each ACH Debit payment file. The ACH Debit acknowledgement file must contain the header and trailer record from the originating payment file.

Acknowledgement files for ACH Debit payment files not transmitted on a Business Day must be sent by no later than 7 AM (ET) of the next Business Day, if unable to transmit same day.

The Contractor must notify DTF of any file failure(s).  Contact instructions (list and method) to be provided by DTF during implementation.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	3.13
	The Contractor must transmit completed and reconciled (reconciled to the day’s activity in each New York State bank account) payment transactions on a tax program Data Output File (see Exhibit. 1-J, Sample Payment File Layout).

Contractor must ensure that each transmission represents remittance and payment transaction data which has been reconciled.
Note:  The Department requires a daily transmitted file even if it contains zero items.  Files must be received by DTF no later than 7 AM (ET) the next Business Day.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement. The Contractor must propose a schedule and method for the electronic delivery of fully processed data to DTF.


	3.14
	On each Banking Day, the Contractor must transmit accumulated settled Credit Card transactions and supporting data.  Each tax program will be transmitted
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	3.22
	The Contractor must provide DTF an electronic file of a transit and routing number verification table minimally on a monthly basis.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	Section IV – Customer Service

	Customer Service for Taxpayers

	4.1
	The Contractor must develop, with DTF's input, and maintain an Interactive Voice Response (IVR) application that allows taxpayers to make ACH Debit and Credit Card payments. This IVR must be available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, 365 days a year except for agreed maintenance and/or testing periods. IVR processing scripts will vary by tax program and payment type. See  Exhibit.1-I, Sample PrompTax IVR
At a minimum, the Department is requiring the Contractor’s IVR to support Dual-tone multi-frequency (DTMF) signaling.
Note: IVR must be able to support both English and Spanish.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	4.2
	The Contractor must provide, at a minimum, taxpayer access to telephone customer services 12 hours each Business Day (7am to 7pm ET) for assistance with making a payment.

There are two types of telephone customer service required by the Contractor:

Assistance with making a payment - This assistance will be available for all taxpayers requiring assistance using the Contractor's web payment solution as well as
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet or exceed this requirement.  


	
	Functional Requirement
	Required Response

	
	and ACH Debit returned/ dishonored items; and

f) Providing notification of any changes in NACHA and Fedwire rules and regulations impacting DTF operations or systems.
	

	Section V - Deposits

	General

	5.1
	The Contractor must have the ability to deposit ACH Debit, ACH Credit, Fedwire and Credit Card transactions into specified New York State accounts.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.   Provide any timing limitations, e.g. the cut off time for same-day deposit, etc.

	5.2
	The contractor is required to establish a separate New York State Bank account for each Tax program as directed by the State.  The Contractor must deposit all payments into a State account established for DTF and NYS Office of the State Comptroller. A separate account is required for each tax program.  See Exhibit 1-L, Sample List of New York State Bank Accounts.   The Department currently uses sub accounts to reconcile transactions for some accounts.  The Contractor must have the ability to allow deposits into sub accounts by tax program for some NYS Bank Accounts or provide an alternative method to reconcile transactions. 

ACH Debit payments must be deposited at the opening of business on the Settlement Date. 

ACH Credit and Fedwire payments should be deposited when received. 

 Note: Credit Card transactions are not to be sent until they have settled.
	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	5.3
	 The Contractor must agree to give full credit for deposit amounts without any payment holds.

Funds must be credited to NYS on the Effective Dates indicated on each transaction.  

	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	Transfers, Debits and Recalls

	5.4
	The Contractor must provide the ability for DTF staff to execute fund transfers to correct misdirected payments, ensuring that such transactions appear on the Data Output File transmitted to DTF. 

	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.  Describe how you will meet this requirement.

	5.5
	 The Contractor must immediately notify DTF of any recalls or debits from any of New York State accounts, and develop a systematic method to provide DTF the ability to review, approve, or reverse recalls/debits.

	Affirm understanding of, and agreement to comply with, this requirement.   Describe how you will meet this requirement.


	STANDARDS
	LIQUIDATED DAMAGES AND REIMBURSEMENTS

	
	fees, etc.) for failure to meet the standard.

	5.A.4  - Contractor Hosted Administrative Site

The Contractor Hosted Administrative Site must be available 24/7, 365 days per year with the exception of agreed upon maintenance windows and notification to DTF if any unexpected maintenance is required.
	Liquidated damages of $500 per outage.

and/or

DTF will be reimbursed for expenses and loss of revenue for failure to meet the standard.  Taxpayer will be reimbursed for any bank related expense (e.g., stop payment fees, return items fees, etc.) for failure to meet the standard.

	5.A.5 – Contractor Web Payment Portal

The Contractor must provide taxpayer access to web applications 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year, with the exception of agreed upon maintenance windows that are consistent with DTF's maintenance windows.  In addition, Contractor shall provide notification to DTF 48 hours prior to any unexpected maintenance to the extent reasonably practicable, but in no event less than 1 hour prior to taking the system down for unexpected maintenance.


	Liquidated damage of $5000 per failure to provide notification.

Liquidated damage of $500 per transaction that fails to complete.

and/or

DTF will be reimbursed for expenses and loss of revenue for failure to meet the standard.  Taxpayer will be reimbursed for any bank related expense (e.g., stop payment fees, return items fees, etc.) for failure to meet the standard.



	5.B  Accuracy and Completeness
	

	5.B.1.  Payment Support Services – Taxpayer Customer Service via Contractor’s Help Desk must be 100% complete and accurate.
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each instance where the interaction between the Contractor and taxpayer causes a payment to be incomplete and/or inaccurate and $2,500 for each day until such instance is rectified;

and/or

Reimbursement to the Department and/or Taxpayer for any expenses, loss of revenue, etc., for failure to meet the standard.

	5.B.2.  Payment Support Services – Taxpayer Customer Service via Contractor’s IVR must be 100% complete and accurate.
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each instance where the IVR causes a payment to be incomplete and/or inaccurate and $2,500 for each day until such instance is rectified;

and/or

Reimbursement to the Department and/or taxpayer for any expenses, loss of revenue, etc., for failure to meet the standard.

	5.B.3.  Payment Support Services – Customer Service to DTF must be 100% complete and accurate.
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each instance where the interaction between the Contractor and the Department causes a payment to be incomplete and/or inaccurate and $2,500 for each day until such instance is rectified;

and/or

Reimbursement to the Department and/or Taxpayer for any expenses, loss of revenue, etc., for failure to meet the standard.

	5.B.4.  Payment Support Services – The Contractor Hosted Administrative Site must be 100% complete and accurate.
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each instance where the Contractor Hosted Administrative site is not available and/or provides inaccurate data and $2,500 for each day until such instance is rectified;

and/or

Reimbursement to the Department and/or Taxpayer for any expenses, loss of revenue, etc., for failure to meet the standard.

	6.0  Transmissions, Files and Reports

	6. A  Timeliness 

	All data transmissions, files and reports must be provided in accordance with the agreed upon timeframes.  
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each such failure and $2,500 for each day until such failure is rectified.

	6. B  Accuracy and Completeness 

	All data transmissions, files and reports must be accurate and complete.
	A flat fee of $2,500 for each such failure and $2,500 for each day until such failure is rectified.


IV. Proposal Submission

The Bidder must provide a response that clearly and precisely provides all required information.  Emphasis should be placed on conformance with the RFP instructions, responsiveness to the RFP requirements and clarity of the intent.
Proposals that do not comply with these instructions or do not meet the full intent of all of the requirements of this RFP may be subject to scoring reductions during the evaluation process or may be deemed non-responsive.
The Department does not require, nor desire, any excessive promotional material which does not specifically address the response requirements of this RFP.

A. Proposal Content and Organization

To facilitate in the evaluation process, the Bidder must organize the proposal into three distinct volumes as follows:

Volume One:
Qualifying and Technical Requirements

Volume Two:
Administrative Requirements

Volume Three:
Financial Requirements

1. Volume One format

Volume One should contain a table of contents with page numbers and each section should be tabbed as follows:

a. Tab 1 –  Executive Summary

b. Tab 2 -  Section II., Qualifying Requirements

c. Tab 3 – Section III.A., Functional Requirements

d. Tab 4 – Section III.B., Program Development and Support  Requirements

e. Tab 5 – Section III.C., Implementation Requirements

f. Tab 6 – Section III.D., Cash Management Requirements

g. Tab 7 – Section III.E., Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages and Reimbursements
h. Tab 8 – Section III.F., Insurance Requirements
2. Volume Two Format

a. Tab 1 –  Cover Letter

· Implementation Requirements

· Cash Management Requirements (Pass/Fail)

· Performance Standards
· Insurance Requirements (Pass/Fail)
· Extraneous Terms

i. Financial Evaluation (30 points)

Bidders cost proposals will be scored concurrently and separately from the Technical evaluation.

ii. Management Review/Presentation (15 Points)

All Bidders will be required to participate in a Management Presentation.  The Bidder will be given a minimum of one week’s notice of the date and time of the presentation.   The presentation will be an opportunity for the bidder to provide an overview of their solution, demonstrate a clear understanding of the Department’s needs, demonstrate the ease of use for taxpayers and demonstrate knowledge and experience to successfully provide the Services required.

 The presentation will not be an opportunity to cure material omissions in the firm’s proposal and is not a substitute for a well written proposal.

Note:  
The Bidder’s presentation must not reference the cost component of the bid, as this is evaluated separately.

Once the Bids have been opened, the Department will reach out to the Bidder to schedule the Management Presentation.  The Department will video tape the presentation which will become part of the procurement record.  The recording will be subject to the same Freedom of Information Law requirements as written documents.

Place:  
New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, located at WA Harriman State Campus, Albany, NY 12227.  The Bidder will be responsible for all cost associated with the presentation, including travel costs.

Attendees:  
The Bidder is limited to four (4) managers at the management presentation.  The managers should represent technology, operations, project management and relationship management.

Exhibits 1 A through 1 RS -  Technical Exhibits 

Exhibit 1-A  DTF Electronic Payments Tax Programs Breakdown

Exhibit 1-B  Implementation Guidelines

Exhibit 1-C  Certification and Implementation Dates

Exhibit 1-D  Online Services Application – Sample Screens

Exhibit 1-E  Sample SAML to Contractor

Exhibit 1-F  Sample SAML back from Contractor

Exhibit 1-G  Sample DLN Ranges

Exhibit 1-H  Sample e-Signature Certification Language

 Exhibit1-I  Sample PrompTax IVR

Exhibit 1-J  Sample Payment File Layout

Exhibit 1-K  Sample ACH Addenda and Fedwire layouts

Exhibit 1-L  Sample List of New York State Bank Accounts 

Exhibit 1-M  Sample Adjustment Reports

Exhibit 1-N  Sample of DTF error messages 
Exhibit 1-O  Sample Reports

Exhibit 1-P  Sample Saved Payment Data Fields

Exhibit 1-Q  Sample Program Specific Business Rules

Exhibit 1-R  Taxpayer Identification File Layout
Exhibit 1-S   Credit Card Percentages
Exhibit 1-A  DTF Electronic Payments Tax Programs Breakdown

















2012 ACH Credit Payments Fedwire Payments
Transaction Dollar Amounts

	 
	PrompTax Withholding
	PrompTax MCTMT
	PrompTax Sales Tax
	PrompTax Fuel Tax
	PrompTax PBT
	Totals

	January
	$21,496,045.26
	$2,118,671.33
	$33,026,482.48
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$56,641,199.07

	February
	$24,568,835.69
	$119.75
	$34,278,664.89
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$58,847,620.33

	March
	$29,334,705.59
	$53,459.13
	$69,787,658.77
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$99,175,823.49

	April
	$19,725,654.31
	$2,237,250.40
	$31,483,618.31
	$0.00
	$19,109.42
	$53,465,632.44

	May
	$21,292,036.05
	$2,219,416.41
	$33,524,052.03
	$0.00
	$3,390.00
	$57,038,894.49

	June
	$50,666,697.39
	$12,250.00
	$36,485,410.32
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$87,164,357.71

	July
	$21,346,450.58
	$1,938,062.73
	$31,979,979.99
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$55,264,493.30

	August
	$30,152,558.64
	$590.84
	$34,191,669.62
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$64,344,819.10

	September
	$19,958,958.34
	$10,693.88
	$30,665,131.37
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$50,634,783.59

	October
	$51,839,021.57
	$2,254,492.06
	$32,050,854.81
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$86,144,368.44

	November
	$115,939,468.49
	$0.00
	$39,062,812.21
	$0.00
	$19,000,000.00
	$174,002,280.70

	December
	$21,166,301.71
	$17,000.00
	$36,039,193.65
	$0.00
	$0.00
	$57,222,495.36

	Totals
	$427,486,733.62
	$10,862,006.53
	$442,575,528.45
	$0.00
	$19,022,499.42
	$899,946,768.02


Exhibit 1-B Implementation Guidelines
	Payment Model Description
	Phase 1:  Implementation by February 1, 2015
	Phase 2:  Implementation by August 1, 2015
	Phase 3:  Implementation   by December 31, 2017

	ACH Credit and Fedwire Payments

Taxpayers will originate ACH Credit and Fedwire payments (including the addenda records) through their financial institutions.  

The Contractor must process PrompTax transactions as received; the Contractor will parse the information on the addenda records identifying the taxpayer and the payment data, such as distribution. 

The Department will provide the Contractor with a file of all business tax Profiles to assist the Contractor in the taxpayer identification process. 

The contractor will also be required to create a database for DTF staff to resolve PrompTax payment exceptions that require manual intervention. 

Corporation Tax ACH Credit payments will be processed differently than PrompTax. Payment will be credited to DTF’s tax receipt account and a daily file will be sent to DTF in a format to be determined by the Department.  
	The ACH Credit and Fedwire payment models for PrompTax will be implemented by February 1, 2015.

ACH Credit payment model will include:

· PrompTax (all 5 taxes within the PrompTax program)

Fedwire payment model will include:

· PrompTax (all 5 taxes within the PrompTax program)
	The ACH Credit payment model for Corporation Tax will be implemented by August 1, 2015.
	


Exhibit 1-Q   Sample Program Specific Business Rules
	Program Area
	ACH
Debit
	ACH
Credit
	Fedwire
	Credit Card
	Check/ Voucher
	Ability to Save Bank Account (ACH Debit only)
	Warehoused/Scheduled (ACH Debit only)
	Partial
Payment 
	Cancel a
Payment (ACH Debit only)
	Who assigns DSN?
	Return or Payment
	Web or File Transmission

	View and pay tax bill
	X
	 
	 
	X
	 
	N
	N
	Y
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	CT MEF
	X
	X
	 
	 
	
	N
	Y
	Y
	N
	DTF
	Return
	File Transmission

	Corp Tax Extension web file
	X
	X
	 
	 
	X
	N
	Y
	Y
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	Corp Tax Estimated Tax web file (CT-400)
	X
	X
	 
	 
	 
	N
	Y
	Y
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Cigarette Stamp Tax
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Y
	Y
	N
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	HUT/OSCAR
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	Highway Use Tax web file
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	Y
	Y
	Y
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	IFTA e-file
	X
	 
	 
	 
	X
	N
	N
	Y
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	IFT Renewal Fee/OSCAR
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Request an installment payment agreement
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Metropolitan Commuter Transportation Mobility Tax (MCTMT) web file
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	Y
	Y
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web


Exhibit 1-Q   Sample Program Specific Business Rules

	Program Area
	ACH
Debit
	ACH
Credit
	Fedwire
	Credit Card
	Check/ Voucher
	Ability to Save Bank Account (ACH Debit only)
	Warehoused/Scheduled (ACH Debit only)
	Partial
Payment 
	Cancel a
Payment (ACH Debit only)
	Who assigns DSN?
	Return or Payment
	Web or File Transmission

	Metropolitan Commuter Transportation Mobility Tax (MCTMT) upload
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Taxicab web file
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Personal Income Tax paper returns
	X
	 
	 
	 
	X
	N
	Y
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	File Transmission

	Personal Income Tax Extension Payment
	X
	 
	 
	X
	X
	N
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	Personal Income Tax e-filed returns (MeF) 
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	Y
	N
	Y
	DTF
	Return
	File Transmission

	Personal Income Tax Estimated Tax Payment
	X
	 
	 
	X
	 
	N
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	Personal Income Tax Payment voucher (201-V)
	X
	 
	 
	X
	 
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Pay an open audit case
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	Y
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	PrompTax - Withholding
	X
	X
	X
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	PrompTax - MCTMT
	X
	X
	X
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	PrompTax - Sales
	X
	X
	X
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web


Exhibit 1-Q   Sample Program Specific Business Rules
	Program Area
	ACH
Debit
	ACH
Credit
	Fedwire
	Credit Card
	Check/ Voucher
	Ability to Save Bank Account (ACH Debit only)
	Warehoused/Scheduled (ACH Debit only)
	Partial
Payment 
	Cancel a
Payment (ACH Debit only)
	Who assigns DSN?
	Return or Payment
	Web or File Transmission

	PrompTax - Prepaid Sales Tax on Motor/Diesel Fuel
	X
	X
	X
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	PrompTax - PBT (Petroleum)
	X
	X
	X
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	N
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Sales Tax Web File 
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	Sales tax re-registration
	X
	 
	 
	 
	X
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	Tax Preparer & Facilitator Registration
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	Resubmit Tax Preparer Registration Payment
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Beverage Container Registration and web file
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Federal State Employment Taxes (FSET)
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	DTF
	Return
	File Transmission

	NYS-45 webfile
	X
	 
	 
	 
	X
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	NYS-1 Upload
	X
	 
	 
	 
	X
	N
	N
	N
	N
	DTF
	Return
	Web

	NYS-1 webfile
	X
	 
	 
	 
	 
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Y
	Contractor
	Payment
	Web


Exhibit 1- S Credit Card Percentages
	PIT Estimated Tax

	      TYPE
	Counts
	$ Amounts

	American Express
	31.38%
	50.76%

	Mastercard
	25.10%
	16.74%

	Visa
	40.97%
	31.60%

	Discover
	2.55%
	0.90%

	 
	100.00%
	100.00%

	PIT Return

	 
	Counts
	$ Amounts

	American Express
	10.21%
	27.76%

	Mastercard
	29.01%
	26.14%

	Visa
	57.57%
	42.80%

	Discover
	3.21%
	3.29%

	 
	100.00%
	100.00%


	PIT Extension

	 
	Counts
	$ Amounts

	American Express
	6.50%
	16.73%

	Mastercard
	32.97%
	31.32%

	Visa
	56.60%
	50.05%

	Discover
	3.92%
	1.91%

	 
	100.00%
	100.00%

	A/R

	 
	Counts
	$ Amounts

	American Express
	6.87%
	21.12%

	Mastercard
	30.58%
	27.73%

	Visa
	60.37%
	48.48%

	Discover
	2.18%
	2.66%

	 
	100.00%
	100.00%


Attachment 1 – Bidder’s Checklist

Volume 1

Qualifying Requirements

Technical Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Functional Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Program Development and Support Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Implementation Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Cash Management Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Performance Standards and Liquidated Damages
 FORMCHECKBOX 

Insurance Requirements
Volume 2

Administrative Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Cover Letter

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Proposed Extraneous Terms

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Request for Exemption from Disclosure

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 4 – M/WBE Utilization Plan

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 5 – Staffing Plan

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 6 – Vendor Responsibility Response Form

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 7 – MacBride Fair Employment Principles Form

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 8 – Designation of Prime Contact

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 9 – Non-Collusive Bidding Certification

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 10 – Offerer Disclosure of Prior Non-Responsibility Determination

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 11 – Contractor Certification of Compliance with State Finance Law 139-k(5)

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 12 – DTF-202 Agreement to Adhere to Secrecy Provisions

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 13 – Public Officers Law

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 14 – Public Officers Law – Post Employment Requirements

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 15 – Subcontractor List

Volume 3

 FORMCHECKBOX 

Attachment 16 – Financial Proposal
[image: image2.png]NYS Department of Taxation and Finance

Request for Proposal

Electronic Payments Services 13-03

All questions must be directed to bfs.contracts@tax.ny.gov






[image: image3.png]Purpose of This Request For Proposal

The Department is seeking an agreement with one
Contractor for a payment solution that provides
electronic payment processing services.






[image: image4.png]Goals and Objectives

The Department plans to achieve:

® an electronic payment solution with a Contractor, that will reduce
the Department's role in payment processing, while still allowing for
expansion of payment options

® asingle sign-on through the Department’s Online Services
application that interfaces with a Contractor payment solution
and has the same look and feel as the Department's web screens

= atransition that will mitigate risk to the NYS revenue stream






[image: image5.png]Required Services and Functions

support the Department payment file transmissions

= provide payment processing services for ACH Debit, ACH Credit,
Fedwire and Credit Card transactions

" host an online payment solution for ACH Debit and credit card
payments that interfaces with the Department’s Online Services
applications

= provide a web application payment portal that can support receiving
and sending secured messages and web service calls containing
taxpayer transaction information

provide customer support






[image: image6.png]Required Services and Functions

The Taxpayer must be able to:
® schedule a payment and cancel a scheduled payment
" view payment history (including scheduled and cancelled payments)

" save payment data

- bank account information (e.g., routing and account number)
- Credit Card information (e.g., Credit Card number)

® access a customer service representative to assist with payments at a
minimum from 7am to 7pm (ET)

= utilize an interactive voice response (IVR) system available 24/7 to
intake ACH Debit payments for PrompTax and Credit Card payments






[image: image7.png]Required Services and Functions

The Contractor must:
accept batched and transactional payment file transmissions

receive and send secure messages and web service calls containing
Taxpayer and transaction information

produce standard daily reports and ad-hoc reports

allow designated Department staff the ability to make necessary
changes/edits to payment transactions through a Contractor-hosted
administrative site

provide a complete view to all payment transactions






[image: image8.png]Contractor Payment Solution
Department Online Services






[image: image9.png]Contractor Payment Solution






[image: image10.png]Web Payment Only Process

Department’s Site Contractor’s Site Contractor’s Site Contractor’s Site Department’s Site

The Taxpayer
willlog in tothe
Department's - willselect - mustassign - must process - will receive
Oniine Services payment method confirmation payment payment file
and select tax number
- will enter payment
application EAELEE - must credit NYS - wil update
- mustsenda web bank account processing
TrERETIE - will review senvice tothe systemto credit
Seu“j'r':::gg;ge and submit Department's - must transmit a the Taxpayer’s
transaction
P = Message Center payment fie to account

payment portal the Department

The Taxpayer: The Contractor : The Contractor : The Department :

= to be implemented for PrompTax by February 1, 2015

based on the agreed upon implementation, the remaining Web Payment Only
applications will be transitioned in a staggered approach, post August 1, 2015

—






[image: image11.png]’ Web Return With Payment Process

Department's Site

The Taxpayer will
loginto the
Department's
Online Services,
selecttax

application, and
enter all tax return

specificinformation

The Department
will send a secure

message tothe
Contractor's

payment portal

Contractor’s Site

The Contractor will
displaytothe Taxpayer
the payment data fields
using applcable ecits for
tax program applcation
received in veb service

The Taxpayer will enter
payment information

The Contractor will
sendasecure messageto
the Departmert's Oniine
Senvice application

that includes payment
data submitted on the

Contractor's payment
portal

Department's Site

The Taxpayer will
review and submit
the transaction

The Department
willassign a
confimation number
andinvoke a web
service tothe
Contractor’s
payment portalto
confirm payment
initiated on
Contractors site

Contractor’s Site

The Contractor:

- must release
payment for
processing

- must credit NYS
bank account

- must transmit a
payment file to
the Department

Department's Site

The Department :

- willreceive
payment file

- will update
processing
system to credit
the taxpayer’s
account

At least one Web return with payment must be implemented on or before August 1, 2015

05 eparmntof Tecton s Pvnce





[image: image12.png]} ACH Credit and Fedwire Process

The Taxpayer will: The Contractor must: The Department will :

- receive and process payment with eEmEEmTEE

e associated addenda record

Credit/Eedyicg through
their financial institution, - process addenda record using pre-defermined - update processing system
formatted to one of the five processing edits. to credit the Taxpayer's

DT S 2 - systematically identify “unclean® transactions ZEELLTE

TEETIAEES and atiempt to validate the taxpayer using
file of valid NYS taxpayers

- assign Document Locator Number (DLN) to
the transactions

- transmit a payment data file to the
Department

= to be implemented for PrompTax by February 1, 2015
= to be implemented for Corporation Tax on or before August 1, 2015

05 eparmntof Tecton s Pvnce





[image: image13.png]Credit Card - Authenticated Process

Department’s Site Department’s Site Department’s Site ntrac Department’s Site

taxpayer transferred
The Taxpayer will Web Return to contractor's sie to
™ "
loginto Online With e make payment
Senvices Payment (following Return With
Payment model)

- receive
payment file

- update
processing
Taxpayer systemto
transferred to creditthe
selectstax Web Payment Contractors site Taxpayer's
application only tomake payment account
(following eD
PaymentOnly model )

tobe implemented on or before August 1,2015

the RequestforProposalrequires the Contractorto expand this payment method to both
the Web Payment Only and the Web Return With Paymentapplications

0% Deparmntof Teaton and Fnnce





[image: image14.png]Credit Card - Unauthenticated Process

Department's Site

The Taxpayer is on
the Department's
public Web site and
selects pay by
credit card

The Taxpayer is
linked o the
Contractor's

standalone Credit

Card payment
application

Contractor’s Site

The Taxpayer:

- will select tax type

- willenter tax
specific
information

- willenter Credit
Card payment
information

Contractor’s Site Contractor’s Site

The Taxpayer will
review and submit
transaction

The Contractor:

- must process the

payment
The Contractorwill

assignthe
confirmation
number and make
aweb service cal
tothe Department's
message center.

- must credit NYS
bank account

- must transmit a
payment file to
the Department

tobe implemented on or before August 1,2015

Department's Site

The Department :

- willreceive the
payment file

- willupdate the
processing
system to credit
the Taxpayer's
account

the unauthenticated process requires the Contractorto develop and hosta standalone
unauthenticated Credit Card paymentapplication thatwill need to capture additional fields not
applicable forthe authenticated process

05 eparmntof Tecton s Pvnce





[image: image15.png]Web Payment Only

Implementation Requirements

Contractor must implement the following on or before February 1, 2015:

= the ACH Debit Web Payment Only application on the Contractor’s
payment portal for the five PrompTax programs

= this implementation must include the following functions and services:
* receive and send secure messages from the Department containing Taxpayer information

* provide 24/7 IVR for PrompTax ACH Debit payments

* acceptafile of valid NYS Taxpayers Identification records (Exhibit 1-R TaxpayerIdentification
File Layout)to be utilized to authenticate PrompTax Taxpayers who use the VR

* provide customer service representatives to assistwith PrompTax payments Monday
through Saturday 7AM — 7PM (Eastern Time)

allow Taxpayers to save bank accountinformation and schedule and cancel payments






[image: image16.png]ACH Credit and Fedwire

Implementation Requirements

Contractor mustalso implement the following on or before February 1, 2015:
= the ability to:

* acceptACH Credit/Fedwire transactions and process the addenda records in the five
Department-specified formats

* apply processing edits to addenda data fields
* develop a systematic validation process for “unclean” ACH Credit/Fedwire addenda records

= utilize the file of valid NYS Taxpayer’s to attempt to validate “unclean”
ACH Credit/Fedwire addenda records

* assign the Department’s default Taxpayeridentification numberto those records that
cannotbe validated






[image: image17.png]Functions and Services
Implementation Requirements

The following additional payment processing requirements must be
implemented on or before February 1, 2015 for the PrompTax program:

® assign confirmation number/documentlocator number (DLN) based on Departmentbusiness rules
= provide web service calls to the Department’'s message center upon completion of a transaction
= process payment and credit appropriate NYS bank account

= transmit payment data to the Department using the common file layout provided in Exhibit 1-J
Sample Payment File Layout

= provide a systematic process for the approval of debits and reversals from NYS bank accounts

= provide a complete view to all payment transaction history for both Taxpayer and designated
Department representatives

= allow designated Department staff the ability to make necessary changes/edits to payment
transactions through a contractor-hosted administrative site

produce standard daily reports and ad-hoc reports






[image: image18.png]August 1, 2015

Implementation Requirements

Contractor must implement the following on or before August 1, 2015:

= the functionality implemented in February 2015 to be expanded to the
Department’s remaining tax programs

= one Web Return With Payment utilizing the Contractor’s payment portal

" receive and process Corporate Tax ACH Credit addenda format (with data
processing edits applied)

= the Credit Card processing functionality that includes:

* anunauthenticated URL to a standalone contractor-hosted paymentapplication
* anlVR Systemavailable 24/7 to intake Credit Card payments
* the authenticated sessiontransferthrough our Online Service applications






[image: image19.png]August 1, 2015

Implementation Requirements (cont.)

The following additional payment processing requirements must be
implemented on or before August 1, 2015:

ability to process payments received through file transmissions (batched and
transactional), some of which may contain scheduled payments

support batched paymentfile transmissions for the life of the contract for those tax
programs not utilizing the Contractor payment portal

ability to receive and send payment data using the common file layout provided in
Exhibit 1-J Sample Payment File Layout

based on the agreed upon implementation schedule, transition the remaining web
payment programs from a file transmission process to the Contractor-hosted
payment portal in a staggered approach






[image: image20.png]Miscellaneous

At the time of contract execution, the successful bidder will be
required to have the following insurance:

general liability

cyber liability

technology professional liability

workers compensation

disability

comprehensive business automobile liability

Additional information regarding the coverage and coverage amounts can be
found in the RFP Section IIl.F Insurance Requirements.






[image: image21.png]Reminders

Important dates in the Schedule of Events

deadline for submission of questions is July 12, 2013 (2PM EDT)

deadline for second submission of questions is July 29, 2013 (2PM EDT)
deadline for submission of Notification of Intent to Bid is August21,2013 (2PM EDT)
proposals due August 30, 2013 (2PM EDT)

All questions regarding this RFP must be submitted to:

® e-mail: bfs.contracts@tax.ny.gov

= written correspondence: Ms. Catherine Golden, Director
New York State Department of Taxation and Finance
Procurement Services Unit

Office of Budget and Management Analysis

WA Harriman State Campus

Albany, NY 12227
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